
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
Monday, May 5, 2025 -  6:00 PM 

AGENDA

 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE

3. CLOSED SESSION NOTICE AND REPORT

A. Closed Session Notice and Report - Monday, May 5, 2025, 5:30 PM, to discuss
Legal Matters

4. ITEMS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

A. Oath of Office for Ocean City Police Chief Raymond Austin

B. Proclamation Recognizing May 1 -7 as National Hurricane Preparedness Week

C. Proclamation Recognizing May as Building Safety Month

5. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Request to Approve Minutes
1. Work Session dated April 29, 2025

B. Acknowledgement of Standing Committee Draft Agendas
1. Police Commission - May 12
2. Tourism Commission - May 12
3. Transportation Committee - May 13
4. Recreation and Parks Committee - May 15
5. Coastal Resources Legislative Committee - May 14
6. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - May 21

6. MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Continued Discussion of OC Bikefest presented by City Manager Terry McGean

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Fiscal Year 2026 Proposed Real Property Tax Rate

8. ITEMS REFERRED TO AND PRESENTATIONS FROM THE CITY MANAGER AND STAFF

9. ITEMS REFERRED TO AND PRESENTATIONS FROM THE CITY SOLICITOR

A. Second Reading - Ordinance 2025-13 to Amend Chapter 110, Entitled Zoning
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(to add certain definitions related to the outdoor display of merchandise and to
adopt outdoor display of merchandise standards for properties fronting Atlantic
Avenue (Boardwalk) as presented at the February 11, 2025, Work Session)

B. First Reading - Ordinance 2025-14 to Adopt the Fiscal Year 2026 Operating
Budget

C. First Reading - Ordinance 2025-15 Amends Chapter 58, Entitled Offenses and
Miscellaneous provision, by adding Article VII, Entitled Sleeping, Obstructing
and Storing Personal Property in Public Places.

D. First Reading - Ordinance 2025-16 to Amend Chapter 58, Entitled Offenses and
Miscellaneous Provisions (companion bill to Ordinance 2025-15 adding Article
VII to ensure offenses are correctly assigned to a penalty)

E. Resolution 2025-14 to Authorize the Disposition of Surplus Personal Property

10. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

A. Comments from the Public Any person who may wish to speak on any matter at
the Regular Meeting may be heard during Comments from the Public for a
period of five (5) minutes or such time as may be deemed appropriate by the
Council President. Anyone wishing to be heard shall state their name, address
and the subject on which he or she wishes to speak.

11. COMMENTS FROM THE CITY MANAGER

A. Comments from the City Manager
A. Review of the May 13, 2025, draft Work Session agenda.

12. COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

A. Comments from the Mayor and Council

13. ADJOURN

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2



Agenda Item # 3.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Closed Session Notice and Report
DATE: April 22, 2025

ISSUE(S): Closed Session Notice and Report

SUMMARY: A Mayor and Council closed session was scheduled for Monday,
May 5, 2025, at 5:30 PM to discuss legal matters.

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High Performing Town
Organization

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Not Applicable

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): 2. Closed Session Notice 5.5.25.doc
3. Closed Session Report 5.5.25.doc
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NOTICE OF CLOSED SESSION OF MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF OCEAN CITY

AUTHORITY: State Government General Provisions Article: § 3-305(b)
PURPOSES:

1. To discuss:
(i) the appointment, employment, assignment, promotion, discipline, demotion, 

compensation, removal, resignation or performance evaluation of appointees, 
employees or officials over whom it has jurisdiction; or

(ii) any other personnel matter that affects one or more specific individuals;
2. To protect the privacy or reputation of individuals with respect to a matter that is not 

related to public business
3. To consider the acquisition of real property for the public purpose and matters directly 

related thereto;
4. Consider a matter that concerns the proposal for a business or industrial organization to 

locate, expand or locate in the state;
5. Consider the investment of public funds;
6. Consider the marketing of public securities;

X 7. Consult with counsel to obtain legal advice;
8. Consult with staff, consultants or other individuals about pending or potential litigations;
9. Conduct collective bargaining negotiations or consider matters that relate to the 

negotiations;
10. Discuss public security if the public body determines that public discussion would 

constitute a risk to the public or public security, including;
a) the deployment of fire and police services and staff; and
b) the development and implementation of emergency plans

11. Prepare, administer or grade a scholastic, licensing or qualifying examination;
12. Conduct or discuss an investigative proceeding on actual or possible criminal conduct;
13. Comply with a specific constitutional, statutory or judicially imposed requirement that 

prevents public disclosures about a particular proceeding or matter; or
14. Before a contract is awarded or bids are opened, discuss a matter directly related to a 

negotiation strategy or the contents of a bid or proposal, if public discussion or 
disclosure would adversely impact the ability of the public body to participate in the 
competitive bidding or proposal process

15. To discuss cybersecurity, if the public body determines that public discussion would 
constitute a risk to: (i) security assessments or deployments relating to information 
resources technology; (ii) network security information or (iii) deployments or 
implementation of security personnel, critical infrastructure or security devices.

For each provision checked above, disclosure of the topic to be discussed and the public body’s reason for 
discussing that topic in closed session. 
Citation Topic Reason for closed session discussion of topic 
§3-305(b)7 Pending and potential litigation Attorney-client privilege

DATE AND TIME: Monday, May 5, 2025          5:30 PM
PLACE: City Hall
SUBJECT: Legal Matters
VOTE: UNANIMOUS

OTHER: FOR:
AGAINST:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
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REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF OCEAN CITY

Prior to the open session of the Mayor and City Council being held on Monday,

May 5, 2025, at 6:00 PM, a closed session was held on Monday, May 5, 2025, at 

5:30 PM at City Hall, 301 N. Baltimore Avenue, Ocean City, Maryland. The following 

is a report of the closed session.

1.  A statement of the time, place, and purpose of the closed session is attached.

2.  A record of the vote of each member as to closing the session is attached.

3.  A citation of the authority under the law for closing the session is attached.

4. (a) Topics of Discussion:  Legal Matters

(b) Persons present: 

Mayor Rick Meehan
City Manager Terry McGean
Deputy City Manager JR Harmon
Council President Matt James
Council Secretary Tony DeLuca 
Council Members: Will Savage III, Larry Yates, John Gehrig, Jake Mitrecic, 

Carol Proctor 
City Clerk Diana Chavis
City Solicitor Heather Stansbury

Action(s) taken:

Motion to close meeting:

End Time:
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Agenda Item # 4.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Lauren Davis, Government Relations Manager
RE: Oath of Office for Ocean City Police Chief Raymond Austin
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): Oath of Office for Ocean City Police Chief Raymond Austin

SUMMARY: Raymond Austin has been appointed the new Chief of Police
for the Ocean City Police Department. With over 30 years of
experience in law enforcement and a long history of
community engagement, Chief Austin returns to lead the
department he has served since 1991.
 
Originally from Pittsburgh, PA, Austin joined OCPD in 1991 as a
seasonal officer and became full-time in 1994. He held
numerous leadership roles, including Commander of the
Criminal Investigation Division, Patrol Lieutenant, and head of
various specialty units. In 2013, he graduated from the 254th
Session of the Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI) National
Academy, an elite law enforcement leadership academy.
 
In addition to his law enforcement expertise, Austin has been
deeply involved in community policing efforts such as National
Night Out, Citizen's Police Academy, Play It Safe, and Coffee
with Cops. After retiring in 2022, he continued serving the
community as a Special Investigator with the Worcester
County State's Attorney's Office. He now returns to lead OCPD,
focusing on public safety, accountability, and community
partnership.

FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High Performing Town
Organization

Not applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Not applicable

COORDINATED WITH: Mayor and City Council
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ATTACHMENT(S): None
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Agenda Item # 4.B

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Joe Theobald, Emergency Services Director
RE: National Hurricane Preparedness Week
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): National Hurricane Preparedness Week

SUMMARY: This proclamation recognizes the week of May 1 - 7, 2025, as
Hurricane Preparedness Week in Ocean City and asks citizens
to be prepared and aware of the dangers of hurricanes.

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

More Livable Community for Residents

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Joseph Theobald, Emergency Services Director

COORDINATED WITH: Lauren Davis, Government Relations Manager

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Proclamation
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NATIONAL HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS WEEK    
May 1 – May 7, 2025 

 
WHEREAS, Hurricanes have been responsible for loss of life, injury and damage in the 
State of Maryland. High winds and water which may accompany hurricanes are 
particularly life-threatening in their intensity and duration; and 
 
WHEREAS, Preparing the residents of the State of Maryland for hurricanes and the 
devastation that accompanies them is a function of government, dependent on the 
leadership of public officials, the efforts of many dedicated volunteers and 
professionals, and the awareness and cooperation of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, Federal, State, local and private organizations are improving preparedness 
and attempting to inform the public of the steps that should be taken to save lives and 
protect property to include evacuations and safety measures, flood-proofing and wind-
proofing techniques and the availability of flood insurance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Hurricane Season runs from June 1 to November 30 and by understanding 
the dangers associated with hurricanes and by taking reasonable precautions, the 
citizens of Maryland can reduce the loss of life, injury and property damage. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard W. Meehan, Mayor of the Town of Ocean City, 
Maryland, do hereby proclaim the week of May 1 – May 7, 2025 as NATIONAL 

HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS WEEK in Ocean City and do commend this 
observance to all of our citizens. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of 
the Town of Ocean City, Maryland to be affixed this 5th day of May in the year of our 
Lord two thousand and twenty-five. 
 

 

 

 

 
 
__________________________________ 

      RICHARD W. MEEHAN 
      Mayor 
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Agenda Item # 4.C

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: George Bendler, Planning and Community Development Director
RE: Building Safety Month
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): Building Safety Month

SUMMARY: This proclamation recognizes the month of May as Building
Safety Month. Ocean City is committed to recognizing that our
growth and strength depends on the safety and essential role
our homes, buildings and infrastructure play, both in everyday
life and when disasters strike. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

More Livable Community for Residents

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: George Bendler, Planning and Community Development
Director

COORDINATED WITH: Lauren Davis, Government Relations Manager

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Proclamation
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BUILDING SAFETY MONTH – MAY, 2025 

 
WHEREAS, Ocean City is committed to recognizing that our growth and strength depends on the safety 
and essential role our homes, buildings and infrastructure play, both in everyday life and when disasters 
strike; and 
 
WHEREAS, our confidence in the resilience of these buildings that make up our community is achieved 
through the devotion of vigilant guardians––building safety and fire prevention officials, architects, 
engineers, builders, tradespeople, design professionals, laborers, plumbers and others in the construction 
industry—who work year-round to ensure the safe construction of buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, these guardians are dedicated members of the International Code Council, a nonprofit that 
brings together local, state, territorial, tribal and federal officials who are experts in the built environment 
to create and implement the highest-quality codes and standards to protect us in the buildings where we 
live, learn, work and play; and 
 
WHEREAS, these modern building codes and standards include safeguards to protect the public from 
hazards such as hurricanes, snowstorms, tornadoes, wildland fires, floods and earthquakes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Building Safety Month is sponsored by the International Code Council to remind the public 
about the critical role of our communities’ largely unknown protectors of public safety—our code 
officials—who assure us of safe, sustainable and affordable buildings that are essential to our prosperity; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, "Game On!," the theme for Building Safety Month 2025, encourages us all to get involved 
and raise awareness about building safety on a personal, local and global scale; and 
 
WHEREAS, each year, in observance of Building Safety Month, people all over the world are asked to 
consider the commitment to improve building safety, resilience and economic investment at home and in 
the community, and to acknowledge the essential service provided to all of us by local, state, tribal, 
territorial, and federal building safety and fire prevention departments, in protecting lives and property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard W. Meehan, Mayor of the Town of Ocean City, along with the City 
Council, do hereby proclaim the Month of May 2025 as Building Safety Month. Accordingly, I encourage 
our citizens to join us as we participate in Building Safety Month activities. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of the Town of Ocean 
City, Maryland to be affixed this 5th day of May in the year of Our Lord two thousand and twenty-five. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 
     RICHARD W. MEEHAN  
     Mayor 
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Agenda Item # 5.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Mayor and City Council Minutes
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): Request to Approve Minutes

SUMMARY: 1. Work Session dated April 29, 2025

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High performing Town
Organization

Approve minutes.

 
ALTERNATIVES: Advise of necessary modifications.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: City Clerk Diana L. Chavis, MMC

COORDINATED WITH: Deputy City Clerk Jessica D. Cropper, CMC

ATTACHMENT(S): None
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Agenda Item # 5.B

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Standing Committee Reports
DATE: April 15, 2025

ISSUE(S): Acknowledgement of Standing Committee Draft Agendas

SUMMARY: 1. Police Commission - May 12
2. Tourism Commission - May 12
3. Transportation Committee - May 13
4. Recreation and Parks Committee - May 15
5. Coastal Resources Legislative Committee - May 14
6. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - May 21
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High Performing Town
Organization

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Not Applicable

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. 2025-05-12 Police Commission Agenda.pdf
2. 2025-05-12 Tourism Commission Agenda.docx
3. 2025-05-13 Transportation Committee Draft Agenda.pdf
4. 2025-05-15 Recreation and Parks Committee.doc
5. 2025-05-14 Coastal Legislative Committee Agenda.pdf
6. 2025.05.21 BPAC Agenda #78.pdf
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Ocean City, Maryland 

Police Commission 

 

OPEN AGENDA 

Monday, May 12, 2025 – 9:30 AM 

Public Safety Building, Third Floor Conference Room 

6501 Coastal Highway 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of Minutes of the April 7, 2025 Police Commission Meeting 

3. Chief Austin’s Update 

4. Recruiting Update 

5. Other Business 

6. Closed Session Notice: Following the Open Session, a Closed Session is 

scheduled at the Public Safety Building on Monday, May 12, 2025, as 

permitted under General Provision Article 3-305(b)(10) to discuss public 

security, if the public body determines that public discussion would 

constitute a risk to the public or to public security, including: (i) the 

deployment of fire and police services and staff; and (ii) the development 

and implementation of emergency plans. 

7. Adjourn 

 

 

Part of this meeting may be closed to the public in accordance with the Open 

Meetings Act 
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Part of the meeting may be closed to the public in accordance with the MD Open Meetings Act.

Tourism Commission Meeting 
Agenda

Monday, May 12, 2025 1:00 p.m.
Roland E. Powell Convention Center – Room 214

1) Approval of Minutes – February 10, 2025

2) Department of Tourism & Business Development Updates

A. Zartico Pacing Report 
B. 150th Event Updates
C. BVK Presentation
D. Miscellaneous

3) Convention Center
A. Sports Flooring Update
B. State Study for Convention Center Parking, etc.

4) Special Events
A. Bike Week Updates
B. Miscellaneous Events/Updates

5) Committee Reports (submitted in writing)
1) Chamber of Commerce 
2) HMRA 
3) OCDC 
4) Worcester County Tourism
5) Art League of Ocean City

7)      Adjourn

*Agenda Subject to Change
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TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM 

224 65th STREET, OCEAN CITY, MARYLAND 

TUESDAY, MAY 13, 2025 @ 9:00 AM 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE DRAFT AGENDA 

 

 

 

A. Approval of March 11th, 2025, Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

B. Recruiting and Staffing Update 

1. Update on recruiting activities 

2. Year-over-year comparisons of number applied and on-staff 

 

C. Special Events 

1. SpringFest 

2. Boardwalk Rock 

3. Long-term plan for Convention Center development 

 

D. General Updates and "Follow-Ups" 

1. Bus Division 

a. Analysis of rideshare data 

b. Ridership and Deployments 

c. Revenue 

d. Expenses (Wages plus Overtime) 

e. Fleet 

f. Bus Stop Reduction status update 

2. Parking Division 

a. Update on transition to meterless parking 

b. Revenue and citations 

 

E. Adjourn (next meeting Tuesday, June 10th, 2025) 
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OCEAN CITY, MARYLAND
RECREATION & PARKS COMMITTEE

Thursday, May 15, 2025
Eagle’s Landing Clubhouse
12367 Eagle’s Nest Road

1:00 p.m.

AGENDA

Our Values:  Professionalism, Accountability, Inclusivity, Health & Wellness, and Fun!

Our Mission:  To enhance the quality of life for our Ocean City residents and visitors by offering safe, 
fun, and inclusive parks and recreation opportunities

1. Call to Order

2. Projects Updates

3. Park Rules Discussion

4. Community Parks & Playgrounds Grant/Project Proposal

5. Golf Getaway Update

6. Summary of Operational Updates

7. Other Business from Committee or Department

8. Adjourn

Part of the meeting may be closed to the public in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

Susan/Word/Rec & Parks Committee Meeting Agenda May 15, 2025

17



 
Coastal Resource Legislative Committee (Green Team) 

 
Agenda 

 
May 14, 2025 

11:00 - 12:00 PM 
Executive Conference Room Conference Room  

(1St Floor at City Hall - 301 Baltimore Ave.) 
 
 

 
1. Introductions and greeting - 5 min 
2. Litter Free OC Campaign - 10 min 

o Adopt-Your-Beach - OC Surf Club 3 min 
o Adopt-Your-Street - MCBP 3 min 
o Beach Heroes OC Update - Leslie 3 min 
o Spring Community Clean Up – Jenelle 1 min 

3. Bucket Tree Update– Joann 5 min   
4. Sustainable Maryland Certification- Jenelle 15 min  
5. Update from Green Team Members - 10 min 

 

Next Meeting July 9, 2025 – 11 to 12pm  

Executive Conference Room, City Hall, 301 Baltimore Ave 

Part of the meeting may be closed to the public in accordance with the MD Open Meetings Act. 
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Town of Ocean City, Maryland   
                             Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 
                             Meeting Agenda 
 

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                               

OCEAN CITY BICYCLE & PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE (OC BPAC) 

Meeting Agenda 

 

DATE:  Wednesday, May 21, 2025     

TIME:  2:00 PM 

LOCATION: 65th Street Public Works Campus 

  Procurement Conference Room 

  214 65th Street, Ocean City, MD 21842 

RE:  OC BPAC Meeting #78 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

 

78.1 Review & Approve 2025.04.16 Meeting Minutes and Action Items 
 

78.2 SHA Pedestrian Safety Committee (Dan Wilson)  
 

78.3 Boardwalk Bike Rack Dedication Program (Mary Wiedorfer, Joe Kurtz, Hal Adkins) 
 

78.4 Oceanside Street End Bike Racks (Mary Wiedorfer, Joe Kurtz) 
 

78.5 Bike Lights, Donations, Promotional Items (Nathan Kutz, Mike Steinen, Joe Marx) 
 

78.6 Wayfinding (George Bendler)  
 

78.7 Delineated Bike Lanes (Hal Adkins, Joe Kurtz, Dan Wilson) 
 

78.8 Engineering Improvements (Joe Kurtz) 
 

78.9 Bylaw Update to Add Honorary BPAC Members 
 

78.10 Open Session 
 
 
Next OC BPAC Meeting: 2025.06.18 | 2:00 PM | 65th Street Public Works Campus.  
 
Part of this meeting may be closed to the public in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.  
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Agenda Item # 6.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
FROM: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
RE: Bikefest 
DATE: April 23, 2025

ISSUE(S): The current promoter of Bikefest, OC Jams, LLC, is in default of
the existing contract which provided for the 2025 Bike Fest
Event (“Event”) and, therefore, that contract has been
terminated. A long-time sponsor of the Event has requested
that his entity, Kickin Events, LLC, enter a two-year contract
(2025 and 2026) to hold the Event. 

SUMMARY: The Town entered into a 3-year contract with OC Jams LLC to
allow them to produce Bikefest in the Inlet Parking Lot in 2023,
2024, and 2025. That contract was terminated based on OC
Jams, LLC’s default. 
 
Kickin Events, LLC would like to enter into a contract with the
Town to hold the Event.  In consideration of Kickin Events,
LLC’s request, the Town has generally put forward terms.
Kickin Events, LLC has asked the Town to consideration
different terms.  The term sheet provided herein outlines the
status of Town Staff and Kickin Events, LLC discussions. 
 
The Council now needs to decide (1) whether any Event should
occur in 2025 (or potentially beyond); and if there should be
an Event then,  (2) what should be terms of the contract with
the new Promoter?  

FISCAL IMPACT: The Contract with OC Jams, LLC would have required that in
2025 it would pay $55,872 as a Usage Fee  for inlet parking lot
to offset the loss of parking revenue, $2 per ticket sold to the
Town to cover other Town expenses associated with the event
and under a separate contract,  $35,173 for the use of the
Convention Center for $35,766. 
 
Kickin Events, LLC is asking that all 2025 fees to be waived
and that 2026 the $2 per ticket charge be waived.

RECOMMENDATION:

1st Class Resort and Tourist Destination

The Council should decide what terms it wants to offer to
Kickin Events, LLC. 
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ALTERNATIVES: Do not hold the Event in 2025.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Terence McGean, City Manager
Tom Perlozzo, Director of Tourism and Economic Development
Heather Stansbury, City Attorney

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Bikefest 2025 Terms.docx
2. OC Bike Fest Signed Agreement.pdf
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BIKE FEST – TERM SHEET

TOWN KICKIN EVENTS 
Term 1 year (2025) 2 years (2025 and 2026)

Fees Waive all fees 
($2.00 a ticket, Usage -
$55,872, Convention Center -
$35,173 for one year only.

Waive all fees for ‘25 and in 
‘26 waive the ticket fees, but 
will pay Usage Fee and 
Convention Center Fee.

Footprint Same as always (IPL/OCCC) Expand event to include 4th

Street Park, which will have 
vendors and a small 
entertainment venue.

(how many days the Event 
will take place at 4th Street is 
unclear and needs to be 
clarified by the Promoter) 

Start Time Same as always –
IPL 4 pm to 11 pm
OCCC 11am to 7pm 

Open IPL, OCC and 4th Street 
10:00 a.m. each day 

Fireworks Not in the current contract Firework display in ‘25 to 
commemorate 9/11

Set-up No calendar problems with 
’25. Load-in and Load-out 
will occur as set forth in the 
original contract. 

If the Promoter obtained a 
contract for year 2 (’26) and 
kept the same load-in 
schedule as Bike Fest 
generally required, a full or 
partial closure of the inlet 
parking lot would be required 
over, all or a portion of,  
Labor Day weekend, which 
staff does not support.

If the Council were to 
approve a 2-year contract 
the Promoter will not require 
any portion of the inlet 
parking lot to be closed over 
any portion of Labor Day 
Weekend. 

(the Council should explore 
this proposed term further 
with the Promoter)
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Agenda Item # 7.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: FY26 Proposed Real Property Tax Rate
DATE: April 29, 2025

ISSUE(S): Public Hearing: FY2026 Real Property Tax Rate

SUMMARY: The proposed tax rate is .4426 per $100 of assessed value
which mirrors the FY25 tax rate. The FY26 budget totals
$181,883,727, with a General Fund budget of $119,920,345.
FY26 proposed budget details are summarized with Ordinance
2025-14 scheduled for first reading on tonight's agenda.

FISCAL IMPACT: See summary.

RECOMMENDATION:

Financially Sound Town Government

Open public hearing for testimony and close public hearing.

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Terence McGean, City Manager
Jennie Knapp, Director of Budget and Management

COORDINATED WITH: Department Directors

ATTACHMENT(S): 1 . Public Hearing Legal Notice - FY2026 Proposed Operating
Budget.docx
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[Seal]

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

MAY 5, 2025, AT 6:00 PM

TOWN OF OCEAN CITY

RE: FISCAL YEAR 2026 OPERATING BUDGET

A Public Hearing is scheduled on Monday, May 5, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., at the Regular Meeting of 
the Mayor and City Council, in the Council Chambers of City Hall located at 301 Baltimore 
Avenue, Ocean City, Maryland, 21842. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the 
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2026 Proposed Operating Budget as presented during multiple 
budget meetings from March 31 to April 8. The Fiscal Year 2026 Proposed Operating Budget 
sets the tax rate at .4426 per $100 of assessed value which mirrors the Fiscal Year 2025 tax 
rate. Real property tax revenues will increase by $5,714,137. The proposed budget and budget 
meeting video links are available online at https://oceancitymd.gov/oc/departments/city-
manager/town-of-ocean-city-budget/. Proposed budget details will be published for two weeks 
prior to its scheduled adoption on second reading at the May 19 Mayor and Council Regular 
Meeting.  
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Agenda Item # 9.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: George Bendler, Planning and Community Development Director
RE: Ordinance 2025-13, Outdoor Display of Merchandise Standards (Boardwalk) 
DATE: April 15, 2025

ISSUE(S): Second Reading - Ordinance 2025-13, Outdoor Display of
Merchandise Standards for Properties Fronting on Atlantic
Avenue (Boardwalk), adds certain definitions related to the
outdoor display of merchandise and adopts outdoor display of
merchandise standards for properties fronting Atlantic Avenue
(Boardwalk) as presented at the February 11, 2025, Work
Session.

SUMMARY: Outdoor displays are permitted along the Boardwalk through
the adoption of Town Code Section 110-884. Enforcement
standards in subsection 110-884(c) were last updated by
Ordinance 2024-17. 
    
Section 110-884 needs to be repealed and replaced to (1)
create a clearer set of parameters for displays; (2) facilitate a
more cohesive tenant aesthetic that reduces visual clutter; (3)
improve the appearance of the Boardwalk and visitor
experience; (4) address safety concerns; (5) provide all
merchants with consistent opportunity for Outdoor Displays;
and (6) improve enforcement. 

Additional code provisions (primarily A-Frame signs in Section
66-16(14)) will require amendment to be consistent with the
new Outdoor Display provisions and those proposed changes
are all addressed in the Work Session presentation.
 
On Tuesday, March 4, 2025, the Planning and Zoning
Commission was presented the proposed code amendments to
Chapter 110, Zoning, following staff review and
recommendation. Subsequently, the Planning and Zoning
Commission conducted a public hearing on Tuesday, March 18,
2025, to consider the above referenced amendment.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Ordinance 2025-13.
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1st Class Resort and Tourist Destination

 
ALTERNATIVES: Defer to Mayor and Council

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Director of Planning and Community Development George
Bendler

COORDINATED WITH: City Solicitor Heather Stansbury
Deputy City Manager - JR Harmon  

ATTACHMENT(S): 1 . ORD 2025-13 - Amend Chapter 110-Zoning, Outdoor
Displays (1).pdf
2 . #25-14100001 Outdoor Display of Merchandise PZC
recommendation letter_signed.pdf
3. 25-03-18_Town_of_OC_Planning___Zoning__final (4)_.pdf
4. Outdoor_Display_guide.pdf
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Public Hearing held before  * Members present:
The Town of Ocean City 
Planning & Zoning           * Joe Wilson 
Zoning Commission, on the   * Pam Robertson 
18th day of March, 2025,    * Joel Brous
Worcester County, Maryland  * Janet Hough

     * Mike Quade
     * 

---------------------------/

OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

IN RE:  PUBLIC HEARING
In the matter of Outdoor Display of Merchandise
Ordinance
APPLICANT:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
PZ FILE 25-1400001 

     APPEARANCES:

         On behalf of the Planning & Zoning Commission:

  SPENCER CROPPER, ESQUIRE

Present:  George Bendler, Director 

     Chase Phillips, Zoning Analyst 

Court Reporter: 
Valerie M. Dawson, RMR
443-783-3113
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   P R O C E E D I N G S 

MR. WILSON:  It is seven o'clock, so we will go 

ahead and move into our public hearing.  Before the public 

hearing begins, I am supposed to ask if any members of the 

audience have any objections to any of these Commissioners 

participating in the public hearing.  

Okay.  Seeing none, we will go ahead and move 

forward with the public hearing.  Outdoor Display of 

Merchandise Ordinance.  To consider amending Chapter 110 

entitled Zoning, Section 110-2 entitled Definitions, to add 

certain definitions related to the outdoor display of 

merchandise; and Section 110-884, entitled Outdoor Display 

of Merchandise Standards for Properties Fronting on Atlantic 

Avenue (boardwalk to establish regulations for businesses 

wishing to display merchandise outdoors along properties 

fronting Atlantic Avenue (boardwalk.)  Businesses would be 

required to obtain an annual display permit through an 

application process.  The ordinance addresses general 

standards for all outdoor displays and specific requirements 

for free-standing outdoor displays, wall mounted outdoor 

displays, A-Frame signs, ancillary services and restaurants.  
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The ordinance also addresses enforcement procedures.

Applicant:  Planning and Zoning Commission (PZ 

File 25-1400001.  

George.  

MR. BENDLER:  Good evening.  George Bendler, 

Director of Planning and Community Development.  

Before you we have a change -- 

MR. CROPPER:  George, could you raise your right 

hand?  

(George Bendler was duly sworn by Mr. Cropper.) 

MR. CROPPER:  Name and address, for the record.  

MR. BENDLER:  George Bendler, 301 Baltimore 

Avenue, Ocean City, Maryland.  

MR. CROPPER:  Thank you. 

MR. BENDLER:  In front of you tonight we have a 

change to the outdoor display ordinance.  So, as we go 

through this, I want the Commissioners to think about, you 

know, when you're out on the boardwalk, think about yourself 

as a merchant and how this code reads, too.  If you have any 

questions or confusion, please interrupt me, we'll discuss 

this, I'll explain.  I have some visuals, too.  I'm not 
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going to go through, deep into the slides, but it's helpful 

to see some of this stuff because there's very nuanced 

items.  

As we approached re-writing this ordinance we, you 

know, looked at what the previous ordinance did and what our 

constraints were.  And what we recognized is that the 

ordinance needed to be rewritten and redone.  So we removed 

a lot, the entire old ordinance, and came up with a new one.  

We did this in conjunction with the Ocean City 

Development Corporation to develop this, as well as staff.  

The first item we did when we developed this 

ordinance was, we needed to recognize that we needed to put 

in new definitions.  So, if you'll turn to page 2 of the 

ordinance.  In the zoning code we did not have a definition 

for the Boardwalk, so we wanted to insure that was there for 

consistency.  

We did display, freestanding outdoor, which means 

a self-supporting structure used for showcasing merchandise 

without requiring attachment to wall, ceiling, structure, or 

other fixture.  

We did display, wall mounted outdoor means a 
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presentation of merchandise attached to the exterior of a 

structure with a rack or other device and shall include any 

type of framed merchandise boards.  

Also in the zoning definition, we did not have a 

definition of feather flag.  These are very prominent.  A 

feathered flag means a vertically oriented banner attached 

to a single pole allowing the fabric to hang loose at one or 

two of the four corners designed to move in the wind.  

We also added a definition for street end or 

street ends, which means the areas or portions of the 

Boardwalk located at the Boardwalk's intersection with an 

east-west street, which may be more clearly delineated by 

the east and west edge of the Boardwalk, and by invisible 

lines extending across the Boardwalk, as a continuation of 

the northern and southern edges of the east-west street.  

As you can see, we removed the original ordinance 

completely striking that out from 3 to 4 to 5, then moving 

onto page 6 where we redeveloped the ordinance into what you 

see in front of you.  

The ordinance was designed to be more simplistic 

for enforcement, simplistic for the user and the applicant 
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of the permit.   

The first part of this is the permitting process.  

Originally in the permitting process OCDC was required to 

have a Boardwalk committee that would approve these.  We 

wanted to simplify that and make that a more cohesive 

process, an easier process, where it is more streamlined and 

more transactional.  

It does involve a bit of OCDC being a part of it, 

if there is concerns or items we want them to review, OCDC 

will be a part of that review process.  

We also established how the review is done, how 

the process is approved, and what the required documents 

are.  

You'll also see the permit is not assignable or 

transferable and the permits are valid for one year.  We did 

this as a rolling permit process instead of a set date.  

That way, if anybody can come in when they want to get their 

permits they can, it'll expire from one year when they get 

the permit.  

So (b), if you look at the standards, are the 

basic standards that all, no matter what kind of display you 
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have, would be required to meet.  We insure that registers 

and sales are all conducted inside, they cannot be done 

outside.  Only items sold inside the business may be 

displayed outside.  Again, we don't want them to display 

something that they're not truly selling inside outside.  

They need to comply with the Ocean City Fire 

Prevention Code.  No outdoor displays shall encroach into 

the Boardwalk or overhang the Boardwalk.  

I just want to give you a quick example of that.  

You know, we have these, some of this merchandise that 

overhang the Boardwalk, we want to make sure that it stays 

on their property.  No business may create a barrier between 

it and an adjacent building.  There should be a 28-inch wide 

walkway between each business.  Outdoor displays shall not 

obstruct pedestrian traffic. 

MR. WILSON:  Can I ask a question so I -- 

MR. BENDLER:  Yes, sir.  

MR. WILSON:  -- so basically any of these 

buildings that, like, don't have a setback from the 

Boardwalk, they're pretty much not going to have merchandise 

outside? 
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MR. BENDLER:  Yeah, it would just be a wall 

display. 

MR. WILSON:  Right, okay, they can't have 

anything, like, hanging out overtop -- 

MR. BENDLER:  Yes.  

MR. WILSON:  -- got it, okay.  

MR. BENDLER:  Correct.  

Let's see if I can find a good example.  

That would be a good example of a wall display 

right there, they could have it... 

MR. WILSON:  Okay, got it. 

MR. BENDLER:  Yeah, flat against the surface.  

But, again, it's supposed to be for a display and 

not for shopping outside for merchandise, so multiple sizes 

and variations, it's just supposed to be a display of what 

offerings are inside. 

MR. WILSON:  Right, that makes sense. 

MR. BENDLER:  You know, an outdoor display shall 

not be attached to a utility pole, fence, bench, or sign.  

We have a lot of that going on now, so we want to 

make sure that's corrected.  An outdoor display shall not 
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face a side street or be on the side street side of the 

building.  The purpose of the original intent of this was 

not to have the side streets be covered with merchandise.  

It's supposed to be on Atlantic Avenue, which is the 

Boardwalk, not the side streets.  When you walk up to the 

Boardwalk it should be a welcoming area, it should not have 

merchandise on both sides.  

No flag or banner may overhang the Boardwalk.  

All merchandise displayed outside, to include 

framed merchandise boards, must be able to be placed inside 

the building during inclement weather.  The business must 

continue to meet life safety regulations in order to remain 

open if the merchandise displayed inside.  

All displays, including display racks and bins, 

shall be moved inside when the business is not open for 

business.  

Display stands, boxes, bins, sunglass racks, shall 

be of uniform size to create an attractive and cohesive 

shopping district.  

Outdoor displays shall not include mannequins.  We 

recognize that mannequins have been an issue over time.  We 
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do not want to continue that practice of mannequins.  It 

also can be a wind born danger.  

Sound amplification arranged or directed towards 

the outdoors and/or located outdoors is prohibited.  

Prohibited items:  Promotion of illegal drugs, 

paraphernalia, tobacco products, firearms, knives, open 

umbrellas, and flashing lights.  

Graffiti shall be removed from the premises.  

Now, we broke it down into two different styles of 

displays.  This one (c) is Freestanding Outdoor Displays.  

This is the merchandise that's not on the wall.  So, a 

business must have a five-foot setback from the Boardwalk 

property line to have a freestanding outdoor display.  

So, if you look at this, an overhead view of it, 

they have to be five feet off the Boardwalk to have that 

outdoor display.  It shall only consist of racks or bins.  

All merchandise, other than on racks, shall be secured in a 

bin.  Instead of giving them percentages, we broke it down 

to sizes so it's more easy to determine what it is.  So, 

racks may be no more than 24 inches in depth, 60 inches in 

length, and 60 inches in height.  Bins may be no more than 
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24 inches in depth and 24 inches in length and 60 inches in 

height.  No display may exceed 60 inches in height, except 

surfboards, windsocks, kites, or sunglass racks which are 

manufactured at six feet.  

No freestanding display shall be placed within 12 

inches of either edge of the business.  

We had a lot of businesses kind of fighting with 

each other, you know, over territory so we don't want them 

to encroach on each other.  

The number of freestanding displays allowed per 

business shall be determined by the following.  We broke 

this down by the size of the business.  So, you know, 

there's the Quiet Storm, which is the largest property on 

the Boardwalk.  We want to make sure -- and then there's the 

smaller businesses, so we want to make sure that each one 

has their fair share of displays.  So we broke it down by 

different ones, by size.  So you see the Tier 1, one foot to 

19 foot is one rack and two bins; 20 feet to 29 foot store 

frontage is two racks and two bins; store frontage with 30 

feet to 39 feet is three racks and four bins; store frontage 

of 40 feet to 60 feet is four racks and five bins; and a 
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store frontage of 61 feet or more is five racks and six 

bins.  

We also allow for, decorative and functional 

amenities are allowed and encouraged on the business' 

property that abuts the Boardwalk to enhance displays and 

the Boardwalk experience.  These amenities may include live 

plantings, no plastic or silk plantings, and attractive 

seating such as benches and chairs for the comfort of 

visitors.  The amenities must be well-maintained throughout 

the entire season.  

When we're talking about that, if you look at that 

yellow area, that's where decorative functional amenities 

could go, in that five-foot area.  Those items cannot be for 

merchandise or sales, and it's something to that effect, you 

know, something you can sit in or take a picture with.  

Bins may not be used for further displays, but 

only as a means of containment of merchandise.  So they 

can't put, you know, advertisements on there, it must just 

be for the display.  

All displays, including display of racks and bins, 

shall be moved inside the business when not open for 
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business.  

No feather flags are allowed to be displayed.  

And, again, we define those feathered flags, you can see how 

they almost become a nuisance.  The amount of feather flags 

they have out there, they can blow in people's faces.  

The entire display pad/floor surface shall be 

maintained and kept clean regularly.  

And then we have Wall Mounted Outdoor Displays. 

MR. WILSON:  George, that one slide with, like, 

the shark, sort of like the photo, that is allowed, correct? 

MR. BENDLER:  Yes, that would be allowed.  So any 

photo -- but what that can't have is an advertisement for a 

product. 

MR. WILSON:  Right, I got it. 

MR. BENDLER:  If it's just, you know, something 

fun out there or a seat or something, or a plant, you can do 

it. 

MR. WILSON:  Okay. 

MR. BENDLER:  To make your business more 

attractive, but you can't be selling the merchandise there. 

MR. WILSON:  Got it. 
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MR. BENDLER:  So, this is Wall Mounted Outdoor 

Displays, this is what we were talking about earlier.  This 

is for places that don't have a pad.  These are primarily 

businesses that are 3rd south.  

Wall Mounted Outdoor Displays shall only be used 

to display merchandise and not to be locations for 

merchandise to be stored to be sold.  Each wall mounted 

display rack or merchandise board cannot exceed 36 inches in 

width and 60 inches in height.  Each wall mounted display 

rack or merchandise board shall not extend more than six 

inches from the physical wall.  So it cannot go more than 

six inches from the wall, so it can't overhang on the 

Boardwalk.  

Each wall mounted display rack or merchandise 

board shall not be within six inches of the end/edge of the 

business.  Each wall mounted display or merchandise board 

shall be four inches off the ground.  

Wall mounted outdoor displays shall not be above 

the door frame or the pull-down door casing.  What we're 

trying to avoid with that is a situation where they're 

basically making tee shirts a permanent fixture.  
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The number of wall mounted displays allowed per 

business shall be determined by the following.  Again, we do 

this by the width of the business frontage.  A one to 19 

foot business frontage, two wall mounted display racks or 

framed merchandise boards; 20 feet to 29 feet, three wall 

mounted display racks or framed merchandise boards; 30 feet 

to 39 feet, four wall mounted display racks or framed 

merchandise boards; 40 feet to 60 feet, five wall mounted 

display racks or framed merchandise boards; 61 feet or more, 

six wall mounted display racks or framed merchandise boards.  

The next section talks about A-Frame.  A-Frame 

signs that currently exist on the Boardwalk were very large, 

they kind of grew into more of this, like, mobile 

merchandise display than a true intent of an A-Frame sign.  

Each business with Boardwalk frontage is allowed one A-Frame 

sign.  No A-Frame sign will be allowed unless associated 

with a Boardwalk store/restaurant and in front of the 

Boardwalk business on the business' property.  

The use of an A-Frame sign will be counted as one 

of the freestanding display allowances.  

A-Frame signs shall not be used for outdoor 
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displays of merchandise, including vellums.  Nothing may be 

attached to the A-Frame that extends above, on the edges, or 

extends beyond the frame.  A-Frame signs may be two-sided.  

A-Frame signs shall be professionally constructed and 

properly maintained.  A-Frame signs shall be collapsable.  

A-Frame signs are not allowed on the street-ends.  A-Frame 

signs shall be brought in the business when it is closed.  

No A-Frame sign may encroach into the Boardwalk.  And 

A-Frame signs shall not exceed 36 inches by 48 inches or 12 

square feet on each side.  A-Frame signs shall not exceed 48 

inches in height, including the legs.  

That determination right there was based on the 

basic sign you can go get at Staples, Wal-Mart, Amazon, the 

typical size of an A-Frame sign you put in front of your 

store in any town USA.  

This is a new item.  Ancillary Services.  

Ancillary store services such as caricaturist, henna tattoo 

artist, hair wraps, photo booths, and the like shall be 

performed or used inside the business.  No longer will we 

allow these businesses to be outside.  We do not allow other 

businesses to do this type of activity, to perform secondary 
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services outside the businesses.  We have agreed that this 

no longer needs to be a continued practice.  

All coin-operated vending machines shall be kept 

in compliance with section 110-335, that's already codified.  

Restaurants, hotels/motels and amusements shall be 

subject to the following outdoor displays, handwritten signs 

shall be limited to incidental signs describing or 

identifying menus, carryout windows, hours of operation, 

entry/exit, vacancy, office, and the like.  

And these ones for the restaurants have not 

changed.  They're what's currently there.  So, that remains 

as such from the original.  As well as the outdoor display 

enforcement, that remains from the original as well, we just 

had to move everything because of the changing of the code 

and rewriting it.  

That is the ordinance in front of you.  I'm happy 

to take any questions. 

MR. BROUS:  I just wonder how did we get to this 

point?  I just, I was on the BZA years ago and we did it 

all, and then it went to the Boardwalk committee, and now 

how did we get to this point?  I'm just curious. 
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MR. BENDLER:  So, I think, we went through various 

different practices, I think, in 2016 there was, that's when 

this original ordinance was created.  And that's when they 

created the Boardwalk committee through OCDC.  And the 

process worked for some time, and then I think it kind of, 

you know, just got, didn't continue as designed.  

And now we're looking at it from a, what is the 

most functional transactional process we can do with also 

making this very clear.  

MR. BROUS:  So, was the Boardwalk Committee, like, 

frustrated with this and they asked for this kind of, or is 

this something that just -- 

MR. BENDLER:  Well, the Boardwalk, there's two 

Boardwalk committees.  There's a Boardwalk committee that is 

OCDC, and there's the Boardwalk Outdoor Display committee.  

And I do have Zach from OCDC, if he does want to comment on 

it, he is more than welcome to.  But OCDC was supportive of 

these changes and wanted these changes and the review 

process. 

MR. WILSON:  I would say, so, I mean, I don't know 

if it was just last year that you brought before us kind of 
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like an escalated fining system, I mean, I guess I would 

say, from the OCDC perspective previously, it was like, 

almost like we could do the design but we didn't have any 

teeth in it.  There was no, like, real enforcement.  

And then we kind of got that enforcement last 

year, but the process was still kind of convoluted.  And I 

think, you know, much to your point and to your credit, 

George just kind of streamlines it a little bit more than 

what it was previously.  

MR. BENDLER:  We had a difficult time when we went 

out in the field to do enforcement.  There was a lot of, you 

know, previous approvals that were just not historically, 

you know, documented, that people said, well, we had this 

historic approval, or there was just a different kind of way 

of measuring something versus the way someone did something 

else.  And this process really kind of is easy, counting on 

your fingers, versus trying to have to do a deep calculation 

on something. 

MR. BROUS:  Do you have the staffing currently to 

handle this instead of, you know, are we doing this?  I'm 

just making sure that --
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MR. BENDLER:  Yes, we do. 

MR. BROUS:  And were all the businesses notified 

of this on the Boardwalk?  I only see one business owner in 

the audience, which is rare.

MR. BENDLER:  We advertised for it, and we are 

going to notify them and, you know, they will be, if they're 

not following this, you know, they need to -- 

MR. BROUS:  But I'm saying this didn't go out to 

them, the Boardwalk owners?  You know, if something is 

happening near your house, you know ahead of time, by either 

the mail or something, the Boardwalk owners were not, or 

store owners were not --

MR. BENDLER:  They did not get mailers or anything 

of that... 

MS. HOUGH:  Was it advertised? 

MR. BENDLER:  It was advertised, yes.  And we had 

a work session with the Mayor and Council, that was 

advertised.  And this has been advertised in the paper, 

properly advertised in the paper, for three weeks.  And it 

has been on our website for some time. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  As things develop with the Bayside 
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Boardwalk, could this apply to that?  I mean, I know it says 

specifically Atlantic Avenue, or could that be incorporated?  

I mean, at the moment there's not a ton of Bayside Boardwalk 

going on, but. 

MR. BENDLER:  I mean, I don't envision that the 

Bayside Boardwalk would have retail merchants on it.  But in 

the future, if that does happen, you know, they could look 

towards that.

MS. HOUGH:  I think the A-Frame signs would have 

to apply, that would be something that could occur on the 

Bayside Boardwalk. 

MR. WILSON:  Any questions for George before we 

ask for comments from the audience?  

Okay.  Anyone who is here to speak for or against 

the proposed ordinance?  

(Audience member coming forward.)

MR. CROPPER:  If you could please raise your right 

hand.  

(The witness was duly sworn.)

MR. CROPPER:  Please state your name and address 

for the record.  
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ZACH BANKERT:  Zach Bankert, Executive Director of 

OCDC, 108 Dorchester Street.  

MR. CROPPER:  Thank you.  

ZACH BANKERT:  So, as George mentioned, I'm just 

here tonight to support this.  OCDC and the Town of Ocean 

City, as you noted, Joe, has been working on cleaning up the 

Boardwalk for quite some time.  What you see in front of you 

here, as Joe noted, represents, I think, over a year of 

effort, first starting with giving teeth to the enforcement 

side of it, and then going out and seeing how we could 

better craft the ordinance so that it's easier to 

understand, both for the business owner and for Town staff.  

You know, the OCDC fully supports this revision 

here.  It has been reviewed by our internal Boardwalk 

committee, not the one that previously reviewed the 

individual applications, and it has the support of the Board 

as well.  You know, I think it really does two things.  The 

first thing it does is, it creates clarity.  You know, I was 

involved with the review of all the applications from last 

year.  And, quite frankly, we, or quite frequently we were 

looking at those applications and we had no idea what we 
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were looking at.  You know, we were looking at an 

application that was designed for a three-dimensional layout 

for something that only had two-dimensional layouts.  

We had questions as to what's in the current code, 

you know, we were looking at, like, 30 percent ratios.  

Well, does that include the garage door?  If you take away 

the garage door, that's the majority of some of these 

storefronts.  So 30 percent, they would be way over.  You 

know, from that, I toured the Boardwalk with George and 

Chase and had a lot of conversations with Patti, who was in 

charge of enforcement last year, and we're walking up and 

down the Boardwalk in the middle of the summer in the, you 

know, prime time, and we're saying I don't understand how 

our current code reflects what's out here.  I don't know how 

we enforce this.  

And, you know, I used the term quite frequently, I 

think we need to burn it down, you know, and start fresh.  

You know, the thing that this really does is, it 

reduces the clutter that you see out there.  And I think 

that's the main point of this.  You know, you go through 

some stores, and George showed you some pictures, I think 
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there's even some, you know, worse actors than what you saw 

in some of these pictures.  

And you all are from here, you know exactly what 

we're talking about.  Where the clutter is spilling out, 

it's spilling over, you have issues with some vendors 

hawking on the Boardwalk.  There was a documented case of 

that last year.  You know, at some point some of the stores 

look more like a yard sale than a store that somebody pays 

90,000 plus to rent for a year.  

And so the goal of this is to improve the look of 

the Boardwalk and, you know, working with the Town staff I 

think that that's what this new, or the new ordinance would, 

in fact, do.  

OCDC is fine with not having the review process on 

our shoulders anymore.  The reason being is this new code is 

easier to understand, and it's clearer.  You shouldn't need 

us, it should be able to be handled by Town staff, just like 

any other permit that OCDC doesn't review.  

The ordinance covers a lot.  I'm not going to go 

into every single point that we would like, we helped write 

it, we didn't write all of it ourselves, George and the Town 
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staff took the majority of that.  But we support it as it's 

written.  

And as far as public education, you know, if this 

ends up getting codified, you know, we're there to help 

educate the store owners afterwards.  I think that, you 

know, we can come up with diagrams that help represent what 

this new code actually looks like.  Because sometimes when 

you're reading code it's very dense.  And so I think we can 

do some visual diagrams and things like that, we can canvas 

the Boardwalk the same way we did when the new enforcement 

code was brought in last year, so.  I think that summarizes 

it. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  The implementation I would be 

curious, is that like what you did last year, how are they 

going to roll this out essentially?  Visiting the business, 

I mean, as far as the ones that, like, need some help.  

ZACH BANKERT:  Kevin Gibbs and myself walked the 

full length of the Boardwalk and stopped in every retail 

store and talked to them and told them, hey, this is what's 

coming this year, heads up, if you don't follow the rules 

there's, you know, there's a little more teeth to this 
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enforcement this year, and explained the nuances of this 

doesn't roll over every year, this is sort of a permanent 

record type thing now, and went through all the minutiae.  

We had a one-sheeter that we brought with us, and 

we took it to every business.  And then I believe George's 

staff did the same thing behind us. 

MR. WILSON:  I'm going to piggyback on Pam's 

question.  

George, because this is a, they can get a, I think 

currently the permit is dated, right?  Like, you have them 

all --

MR. BENDLER:  Yes. 

MR. WILSON:  -- the same time, so those are all 

going to expire.  Do you expect a wave of everybody coming 

in -- 

MR. BENDLER:  Yes. 

MR. WILSON:  -- now?  And then, also, from an 

enforcement perspective, I guess you guys have some sort of 

tracking system that shows when people's licenses expire?

MR. BENDLER:  So everyone's permits, everyone 

still has a license, last year's license goes from June, or 
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July 1st to June 30th, 2025.  So their licenses all will 

expire in that timeframe.  So they can come in and get it 

whenever they want, but their license will still be active, 

they can still operate under the old code up until July 1st, 

2025.  

So, they have some time to figure out this new 

process and see if it will work. 

MR. WILSON:  Okay, got it.  

Any other questions for Zach?  

Thank you.  

  Anyone else that would like to speak for or 

against?  

  (Audience member coming forward.)  

MR. CROPPER:  Please raise your right hand.  

(The witness was duly sworn.) 

MR. CROPPER:  State your name and address for the 

record.  

BRUCE KRASNER:  Bruce Krasner, 6333 South Point 

Road, in Berlin.

MR. CROPPER:  Thank you.  

BRUCE KRASNER:  I don't know where to begin.  I 
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have, I currently own six stores on the Boardwalk, plus 

various properties on the Boardwalk as well.  

And I believe that when they came up with this new 

ordinance, they didn't discuss anything with anybody on the 

Boardwalk.  So, they don't know what it's like to actually 

work there.  They don't know what it's like on a day-to-day 

basis.  They don't take into consideration what we're paying 

and what we're getting for all of that.  

I was a member of the BDA, which is the Boardwalk 

Development Association, for probably twelve years.  We 

actually designed the ordinance that was before this.  

The problem with that is that the City never 

enforced or fined anybody for what was going on.  So, now, 

obviously something new is coming into play.  It was pretty 

easy to follow.  There was, you know, there were 

percentages, there were distinct marks, the Boardwalk is a 

very dynamic place.  South of 3rd Street is one section.  

North of 3rd Street is another.  

So, what he's saying is, what they're trying to 

implement doesn't hold true for all parts of the Boardwalk.  

When he says we only want a six-inch hanging thing from a, 
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from a wall, well, they don't exist.  It just doesn't 

happen.  

So, I wish they would've consulted me because 

there's nobody that knows more about this than I do.  I've 

been on the Boardwalk for about forty years.  

Patti, who is the compliance officer from last 

year, actually came, was in my store every week talking to 

me about how and what's going on.  I was the one that was 

telling her, it's pretty simple, didn't anybody explain this 

to you?  

So, the fact is, it's not necessarily a change in 

an ordinance that should be implemented.  It's really 

monitoring and enforcing what was already in play.  

The Boardwalk is an iconic place in Ocean City.  

Every family comes there.  They all love and enjoy it.  

When he was saying something about the flags that 

are hanging on the Boardwalk, those people that display 

those, they don't even have a Boardwalk outdoor display.  

That's a sign permit.  Not included in what's going on.  

I feel that every few years people come against 

the Boardwalk saying that we're doing things that are, like, 
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not nice or the vision of what Ocean City wants.  And I 

understand that getting rid of the items that are sold, 

meaning the offensive items, should be done.  I have no 

problem with that at all.  

But that does not mean that we shouldn't be, like 

you called it a flea market.  It's not a flea market.  It's 

a boardwalk.  There are boardwalks all across the country, 

this is what we do, this is part of the aura of what a 

boardwalk is.  It's an attraction.  And we're selling, or 

we're displaying point of, not point of sale, but things 

that catch people's eyes, that brings them into the store.  

I agree with fire code enforcement.  I was a 

firefighter for twelve years.  And, you know, you should 

have the right width in between your racks and stuff.  

But the new code does not take into consideration 

what the Boardwalk is really like.  They are limiting us to 

what we can display, what we sell, what we're going to sell.  

And I have spoken to Zach about it, and if anybody 

would've asked me I could've told them exactly how it's easy 

to enforce.  It's not that big a deal the 30 percent rule.  

It's easy.  The point is, the City never enforced it.  We 
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are the only ones on the Boardwalk that actually pay a fee 

to have an outdoor display.  All the restaurants that have 

their tables out to the end of the Boardwalk, they don't pay 

one.  Why is that?  I don't know.  That can add to whoever 

the enforcement officer, their payroll, to take care of it.  

But it's, this is, what they're suggesting is not 

reality to a merchant that's actually on the Boardwalk.  

Like I said, the BDA, when Vicki and I were doing 

it, it was pretty simple.  It was easy.  But when we handed 

out $30,000 in fines to one business owner, they paid zero.  

Tell me how that works.  It's like if you're in a speed 

zone, and you're not getting a ticket every time you speed, 

is that going to stop you from speeding?  No.  

So, it's really about monitoring and enforcement.  

It's not about change.  We don't need to change.  We don't 

need to fix what's broken.  Yes, if the offensive item is 

out there, I agree, let's take it in and take care of it, 

just like anybody else.  The one picture that they put up 

with the displays above the store, that is the definition of 

an outdoor display.  What else would it be?  They're not 

offensive.  It's showing the goods that we're selling 
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inside.  Why would you take that away?  There is no reason 

for it.  As long as it counts in the percentage, it should 

not be taken away at all.  

And what he's suggesting for north of 3rd Street 

doesn't make sense.  He actually said that Quiet Storm is 

the largest store on the Boardwalk.  It might be inside, but 

their outside is, it doesn't correspond with what's inside.  

So, they're not allowed to have that much stuff outside.  

They only have three feet.  

So, again, before you make a hasty decision on how 

you're going to vote on this, you need to take into 

consideration those people that are going to be affected and 

actually the tee shirt guys.  We've been out there, we're 

trying to make a living just like anybody else.  The beer 

places and the restaurants, they can advertise their, that 

is what they're selling outside, but we can't put anything 

else out there.  It doesn't make sense. 

MR. WILSON:  Can I ask you a question?  You said 

that Patti, the enforcement officer, came in frequently and 

was asking you how to enforce it -- 

BRUCE KRASNER:  Like, what exactly did you do, 
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like how to do her job. 

MR. WILSON:  Right, okay, so -- 

BRUCE KRASNER:  Because nobody explained it to 

her. 

MR. WILSON:  I'm just, I think that just kind of 

proves the point, though, that the code is hard to read and 

hard to interpret.  Because if it was easy to read and 

interpret, she wouldn't have to come and ask somebody, such 

as yourself, how to interpret and enforce it.

BRUCE KRASNER:  Not necessarily.  She was never 

taught how to do her job.  She was just thrown in like a 

lamb to the wolves.  It's really very simple.  If it looks 

like it's too much outside, and it's a simple formula, then 

it probably is.  Like I said, when I used my speeding ticket 

example, yes, people would take advantage of the system if 

you let them.  You know what I mean?  It's really simple.  

And, again, I can explain it to all of you in a 

matter of minutes.  But taking it away is not the answer.  

Changing it is not the answer.  Because what you're doing is 

you're limiting, we, you know, as business owners, we're 

paying taxes, we're supporting, you know, whatever goes into 
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the coffers of the government.  But you're just going to be 

limiting more than what we're doing.  And that's really not 

fair.  We're being discriminated against.  

MR. WILSON:  Questions? 

MR. BROUS:  This might be a hard question to 

answer, but do you have any idea why you're the only 

business owner here?  

BRUCE KRASNER:  Because nobody else knew about it.  

Zach just showed me the actual ordinance on paper, that I'd 

never seen before. 

MR. BROUS:  Okay.  Thank you.  

BRUCE KRASNER:  It's not hard at all. 

MR. WILSON:  Do you think that the Boardwalk 

businesses look cluttered at all?  Or do you think they're 

good the way they are?  

BRUCE KRASNER:  So, cluttered is a personal 

feeling and whatnot.  If it's safe to walk by and it's not 

interfering to a neighbor, I'm going to say no.  I mean, let 

them put out whatever they want, who cares?  That's like 

saying do you carry too many beers in a bar?  That's like, 

you know, it's objective.  It's very objective.  

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

 35

And, like I said, as long as it's not over their 

limit or infringing on the Boardwalk right-of-way, then, no, 

I don't, I don't agree.  

It's like when you saw that picture of the display 

above the store, that's my store, it's not bothering 

anybody.  

MR. WILSON:  Any other questions?  

Okay.  I think -- 

BRUCE KRASNER:  Thank you.  

MR. WILSON:  -- we'll go ahead and... 

Anyone else from the public that would like to 

speak on the matter?   

If not, I will go ahead and close the hearing and 

we can start deliberating. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  Move to close the hearing. 

MR. WILSON:  Motion from Pam to close the hearing. 

Second from Joel.  

Any further discussion?  

All those in favor?  

   (Hands raised.) 

MR. WILSON:  All right.  
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I'll start.  I do think that there has been a 

concerted effort to clean up visually the Boardwalk, not 

just from the Town, but from other citizens in the area that 

have, it's been a topic of conversation for a very long 

time.  I think this ordinance helps accomplish that.  I 

mean, the Town itself is going through revisions of all the 

signs that they have on the Boardwalk to try and make it 

more uniform and more visually appealing.  And I don't 

personally see any reason why we shouldn't continue to try 

to do so with the businesses as well.  

Go ahead.  

MS. HOUGH:  I think, it's not only people that 

live here that complain, it's the visitors, too.  

Complaining about not seeing what they want or seeing too 

much, you know, with the profanity and things.  And that's 

not all, it's just the mess.  I walk most days and the big 

A-Frame signs that are huge, that are on rollers, they've 

been out there all winter.  All winter.  Bad winds.  I've 

seen them roll onto the Boardwalk.  I just... it's a mess.  

MR. WILSON:  Pam. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  I was just going to say, he's got 
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a point on the enforcement and the, along with this, the 

signage and things of that nature, the whole point is to 

make things less cluttered and less, not uniform but less 

carnival like maybe. 

MR. WILSON:  Yes. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  But that's it.  But enforcement, 

that with parking and everything else, it is, it really does 

come down to enforcement. 

MR. WILSON:  That's definitely going to be a big 

part of it. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  And having, I'm sure, the staff to 

do it, which is, I'm sure, not easy. 

MR. BROUS:  I have two points.  The first one is, 

I think, I mean, I see both sides as I think, you know, 

there does need to be some cleaning up on the Boardwalk.  

It's, you know, but at the same time I think this goes too 

far, it's a little extreme, personally.  

And, secondly, I just, I know that we advertised 

it, but I just, and they knew it was coming possibly, but I 

know, like, if someone's doing a deck beside me and my 

house, I get notification in the mail.  And the fact that 
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this directly affects their business, and they weren't 

notified by mail directly, I don't think that's fair or 

enough to business owners, I think it should be 

re-advertized and sent out to every business owner on the 

Boardwalk so they're aware.  I just think that's a little, 

well, it's not fair, personally.  

MR. WILSON:  Mike.

MR. QUADE:  I think it's our responsibility to 

have a safe place for people to walk on the Boardwalk.  So, 

I'm totally in agreement with this. 

MR. WILSON:  All right.  I will entertain a motion 

for anything. 

MS. ROBERTSON:  I move we adopt it. 

MR. WILSON:  Okay.  We've got a motion from Pam to 

adopt as -- 

MR. QUADE:  I'll second. 

MR. WILSON:  I've got a second from Mike. 

Any further discussion?  

All those in favor?  

  (Hands raised.) 

MR. WILSON:  And opposed?
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   (Mr. Brous raised his hand.) 

MR. WILSON:  Four to one.  Joel opposed.  

Very good.  Thank you.  

And moving on, we've got Commissioner comments or 

Staff comments.  

MR. BENDLER:  Just one point, this is not adopted 

formally.  This is to send to the Mayor and Council.  So, 

there will be another opportunity for the public to hear 

this, a first reading at the Mayor and Council.  It will be 

advertised, and then there will be a second reading for 

formal adoption.  

So, there are two opportunities for the public to 

come out and hear this ordinance and discuss and make 

changes.  

(End of proceedings.)
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COURT REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE 

I, Valerie M. Dawson, RMR, certify that I 

reported verbatim by stenotype the Proceedings of the 

Town of Ocean City Planning and Zoning Commission 

hearing, held on the 18th day of March, 2025.  

  I further certify that to the best of my 

knowledge and belief, the foregoing transcript 

constitutes a true and correct transcript of the said 

proceedings.

Given under my hand this 27th day of March, 

2025, at Salisbury, Maryland. 

_________________________ 

     Valerie M. Dawson, RMR

 Court Reporter
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C. Outdoor Wall Mounted Displays

Outdoor Wall Mounted Displays are subject to the below guidelines and requirements when 

considering dimension and placement:

GUIDELINES & REQUIREMENTS

An Outdoor Wall Mounted Display shall not be attached to a utility pole, tree, fence, bench or sign.

Display stands, boxes, bins, clothes poles, racks, hermit crab cages, sunglass racks, etc., shall be of 

uniform size, type and materials to create an attractive and cohesive shopping district.

Each Outdoor Wall Mounted Display rack or merchandise board cannot exceed thirty-six inches 

(36") in width and sixty inches (60") in height.

Each Outdoor Wall Mounted Display rack or merchandise board shall not extend more than four 

inches (4") from the physical wall.

Each Outdoor Wall Mounted Display rack or merchandise board shall not be within six inches (6") 

of the end/edge of the business. Each wall mounted display rack or merchandise board shall be a 

minimum of four inches (4") off the ground.

Outdoor Wall Mounted Displays shall not be above the door frame or the pull-down door casing.

The number of Wall Mounted Displays allowed per business shall be determined by the following:

 

(1)

(2)

(3) 

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Two (2) wall mounted displays or framed merchandise boards1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

BUSINESS FRONTAGE AMOUNT / TYPE OF DISPLAY ALLOWED

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

30 ft min. - 39 ft max.

40 ft min. - 60 ft max.

61 ft or more

Three (3) wall mounted displays or framed merchandise boards

Four (4) wall mounted displays or framed merchandise boards

Five (5) wall mounted displays or framed merchandise boards

Six (6) wall mounted displays or framed merchandise boards

13
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61'

5'

3'

1'

60'

5'

3'

1'

39'

29'

5'

3'

19'

5'

3'

5'

3'

1'

1'

1'

61'

1'

60'

39'

29'

19'

Total wall area:
10′ (height)×61'(width)= 610 sq. ft.

Allocated display area (30% of total):
610×0.30=183 sq. ft.

 Area of one display (3' x 5'):
3×5=15 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
183 ÷15= 12.2 ⇒12
 

Total wall area:
10′ (height)×61'(width)= 600 sq. ft.

Allocated display area (30% of total):
600×0.30=180 sq. ft.
 

Area of one display (3' x 5'):
3×5=15 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
180 ÷15= 12 ⇒12
 

Total wall area:
10′ (height)×39'(width)= 390 sq. ft.

Allocated display area (30% of total):
390×0.30=117 sq. ft.
 

Area of one display (3' x 5'):
3×5=15 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
117÷15= 7.8 ⇒7 

Total wall area:
10′ (height)×29'(width)= 290 sq. ft.

Allocated display area (30% of total):
290×0.30= 87 sq. ft.
 

Area of one display (3' x 5'):
3×5=15 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
87÷15= 5.8 ⇒5 

Total wall area:
10′ (height)×61'(width)= 190 sq. ft.

Allocated display area (30% of total):
190×0.30=57 sq. ft.

 Area of one display (3' x 5'):
3×5=15 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
57 ÷15= 3.8 ⇒3 

3'

5'

1'

3'

5'

1'

3'

5'

1'

3'

5'

1'

3'

5'

61 ft or more

Six (6) wall mounted displays or
framed merchandise boards

40 ft min. - 60 ft  max.

Five (5) wall mounted displays or
framed merchandise boards

30 ft min. - 39 ft  max.

Four (4) wall mounted displays or
framed merchandise boards

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

Three (3) wall mounted displays
or framed merchandise boards

1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

Two (2) wall mounted displays or
framed merchandise boards

Wall Mounted Displays
Proposed OrdinanceCurrent Ordinance
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H E N N A  TAT TO O S

INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR

$2.50
$4.00
$3.50
$7.00
$4.00
$5.00

INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR

$2.50
$4.00
$3.50
$7.00
$4.00
$5.00

MENU

Ord� H�e Pi ck Up

Hours
11am - 9pm

Daily

In s� t Tag l i ne H�e
VENDOR NAME HERE

·  Ins�t Product  ·  Ins�t Product  ·  Ins�t Product  · 

VENDOR NAME
INSERT TAGLINE HERE

SCALE:  1/4"  =  1 ' -0"

BEACH WA R E CUSTOM T-SH IRTS

NTE 60"

4" min.

6" min.NTE 36"

This example elevation is to illustrate the requirements surrounding Outdoor Wall Mounted Displays and their placement on any business along the Ocean City Boardwalk.

The example vendor used in this image has a storefront that is twenty-seven feet (27') wide thus permitting them a quantity of three (3) wall mounted displays or framed 

merchandise boards as shown. Outdoor Wall Mounted Display examples are highlighted in green.

Outdoor Wall-Mounted Displays shall
not be above the door frame
or the pull-down door casing.

Each Outdoor Wall-Mounted Display rack 
or merchandise board shall be a minimum 

of four inches (4") off the ground.

No Outdoor Wall-Mounted Display shall 
be within six inches (6") of the end/edge

of the business

Each Outdoor Wall-Mounted Display rack
or merchandise board not to exceed (NTE) 

thirty-six inches (36") in width 
and sixty inches (60") in height.

2

3

4

1

1

2

3

4
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TENANT SPACE 1 TENANT SPACE 2 TENANT SPACE 3 TENANT SPACE 4TENANT SPACE 1 TENANT SPACE 2 TENANT SPACE 3

61 ft or more

SCALE:  1/4"  =  1 ' -0"

VENDOR NAME
INSERT TAGLINE HERE

1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

30 ft min. - 39 ft max.

40 ft min. - 60 ft max.

1 ft min.
-

19 ft max.

Two (2)
displays

maximum

Three (3)
displays

maximum

Four (4)
displays

maximum

Five (5)
displays

maximum

Six (6)
displays

maximum

20 ft min.
-

29 ft max.
40 ft min.

-
60 ft max.

30 ft min.
-

39 ft max.
61 ft +

61 ft or more

OUTDOOR
WALL 

MOUNTED
DISPLAY

This example elevation is to illustrate the quantity of allowed Outdoor Wall Mounted Displays, shown at their maximum allowed size, based on individual business 

frontage. Use this graphic and the chart displayed on page 13 to determine your business’s allowance. 

MAGENTA COLOR FIELDS REPRESENT OUTDOOR WALL MOUNTED DISPLAYS

AT THEIR MAXIMUM ALLOWED SIZE
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 (1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

GUIDELINES & REQUIREMENTS

Racks shall be no more than twenty-four inches (24") in depth, sixty inches (60") in length 

and sixty inches (60") in height. Bins may be no more than twenty-four inches (24") in depth, 

twenty-four inches (24") in length and sixty inches in height.

No Outdoor Freestanding Display may exceed inches (60") in height, except surfboards, windsocks, 

kites, or sunglass racks which are manufactured at six feet.

No Outdoor Freestanding Display shall be placed within twelve inches (12") of either end/edge of   

the business.

The number of Outdoor Freestanding Displays allowed per business shall be determined by   

the following:

D. Outdoor Freestanding Displays

Outdoor Freestanding Displays are subject to the below guidelines and requirements when 

considering dimension and placement:

One (1) rack and two (2) bins1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

BUSINESS FRONTAGE AMOUNT / TYPE OF DISPLAY ALLOWED

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

30 ft min. - 39 ft max.

40 ft min. - 60 ft max.

61 ft or more

Two (2) racks and two (2) bins

Three (3) racks and four (4) bins

Four (4) racks and five (5) bins

Five (5) racks and six (6) bins
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61'

60'

39'

29'

19'

61'

60'

39'

29'

19'

Total free standing area:
10′ (length)×61'(width)= 610 sq. ft.

Allocated display area
(30% of total): 610×0.30=183 sq. ft.
 

Area of one bin (2' x 2'): 2×2= 4 sq. ft.

Area of one rack (2' x 5'): 2×5= 10 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
(13×10)+(13×4)=130+52=182 sq ft
13 bins & 13 racks 

61 ft or more

Five (5) racks and six (6) bins

40 ft min. - 60 ft  max.

Four (4) racks and five (5) bins

30 ft min. - 39 ft  max.

Three (3) racks and four (4) bins

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

Two (2) racks and two (2) bins

1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

One (1) rack and two (2) bins

2'
2'

5'

2'

Total free standing area:
10′ (length)×61'(width)= 600 sq. ft.

Allocated display area
(30% of total): 600×0.30=180 sq. ft.
 

Area of one bin (2' x 2'): 2×2= 4 sq. ft.

Area of one rack (2' x 5'): 2×5= 10 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
(12×10)+(12×4)=120+48=168 sq ft
12 bins & 12 racks 

2'

5'

2'

Total free standing area:
10′ (length)×39' (width)= 390 sq. ft.

Allocated display area
(30% of total): 390×0.30=117 sq. ft.
 

Area of one bin (2' x 2'): 2×2= 4 sq. ft.

Area of one rack (2' x 5'): 2×5= 10 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
(8×10)+8×4)=80+32=112sq ft
8 bins & 8 racks 

Total free standing area:
10′ (length)×61'(width)= 190 sq. ft.

Allocated display area
(30% of total): 190×0.30= 57 sq. ft.
 

Area of one bin (2' x 2'): 2×2= 4 sq. ft.

Area of one rack (2' x 5'): 2×5= 10 sq. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
(4×10)+(4×4)= 40+16= 57 sq ft
4 bins & 4  racks 

Total free standing area:
10′ (length)×61'(width)= 290 sq. ft.

Allocated display area
(30% of total): 290 × 0.30= 87 sq. ft.
 

Area of one bin (2' x 2'): 2×2= 4 sq. ft.

Area of one rack (2' x 5'): 2×5= 10 q. ft.

Total number of displays that can fit:
(6×10)+(6×4)=60+24= 84 sq ft
6 bins & 6 racks 

2'

5'

2'

2'

2'

2'

2'

2'

5'

2'

5'

2'

2'

2'
2'

5'

2'

2'
2'

5'

2'

2'

2'
2'

5'

5'

2' 2'

2'

5'

2'

2'

2'

Freestanding Displays
Proposed OrdinanceCurrent Ordinance
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SCALE:  1/4"  =  1 ' -0"

INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR

$2.50
$4.00
$3.50
$7.00
$4.00
$5.00

INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR

$2.50
$4.00
$3.50
$7.00
$4.00
$5.00

MENU

Ord� H�e Pi ck Up

Hours
11am - 9pm

Daily

In s� t Tag l i ne H�e
VENDOR NAME HERE

·  Ins�t Product  ·  Ins�t Product  ·  Ins�t Product  · 

VENDOR NAME
INSERT TAGLINE HERE

H E N N A  TAT TO O S

NTE 60"NTE 24" NTE 24"

NTE 60"

12" min.

This example elevation is to illustrate the requirements surrounding Outdoor Freestanding Displays and their placement on any business along the Ocean City Boardwalk.

The example vendor used in this image has a storefront that is twenty-seven feet (27’) wide thus permitting them a quantity of one (1) rack and two (2) bins. Outdoor 

Freestanding Display examples are highlighted in green.

No Outdoor Freestanding Display shall be 
within twelve inches (12") of the end/edge 

of the business.

No display may exceed sixty inches (60") 
in height, except surfboards, windsocks, 

kites, or sunglass racks which are 
manufactured at six feet.

Bins may be no more than twenty-four 
inches (24") in depth, twenty-four inches 

(24") in length and sixty inches (60") 
in height.

Racks may be no more than twenty-four 
inches (24") in depth, sixty inches (60") 

in length and sixty inches (60") in height.

2

3

4

1

1

2

3 4
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SCALE:  1/4"  =  1 ' -0"

VENDOR NAME
INSERT TAGLINE HERE

1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

30 ft min. - 39 ft max.

40 ft min. - 60 ft max.

61 ft or more

One (1)
rack maximum

1 ft min.
-

19 ft max.

Two (2)
racks maximum

20 ft min.
-

29 ft max.

Three (3)
racks maximum

30 ft min.
-

39 ft max.

Four (4)
racks maximum

40 ft min.
-

60 ft max.

Five (5)
racks

maximum

61 ft +

Two (2) bins
maximum

1 ft min. - 19 ft max.

Two (2) bins
maximum

20 ft min. - 29 ft max.

Four (4) bins
maximum

30 ft min. - 39 ft max.

Five (5) bins
maximum

40 ft min. - 60 ft max.

Six (6) bins
maximum

61 ft +

This example elevation is to illustrate the quantity of allowed Exterior Freestanding Displays, shown at their maximum allowed size, based on individual business frontage. 

Use this graphic and the chart displayed on page 18 to determine your business’s individual allowance. 

MAGENTA COLOR FIELDS REPRESENT FREESTANDING WALL MOUNTED DISPLAYS 

(RACKS & BINS) AT THEIR MAXIMUM ALLOWED SIZE

21
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GUIDELINES & REQUIREMENTS

Each business with Boardwalk frontage is allowed one A-frame Sign. No A-frame Signs will be 

allowed unless associated with a Boardwalk store/restaurant and in front of the Boardwalk 

business on the business’ property.

A-Frame Signs shall not be used for outdoor displays of merchandise, including vellums. Nothing 

may be attached to the A-Frame that extends above, on the edges, or extends beyond the frame. 

A-Frame Signs may be two-sided.

A-Frame Signs are not allowed on street-ends.

No A-Frame Sign may encroach into the boardwalk.

A-Frame signs shall not exceed thirty-six (36") inches by forty-eight inches (48"), or twelve 

square feet (12' sq.) on each side. A-Frame signs shall not exceed forty-eight inches (48") in 

height including the legs.

 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

F. A-Frame Signs

A-Frame Signs are subject to the below guidelines and requirements when considering dimension 

and placement:

26
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H E N N A  TAT TO O S

INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR

$2.50
$4.00
$3.50
$7.00
$4.00
$5.00

INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR
INSERT FLAVOR

$2.50
$4.00
$3.50
$7.00
$4.00
$5.00

MENU

Ord� H�e Pi ck Up

Hours
11am - 9pm

Daily

In s� t Tag l i ne H�e
VENDOR NAME HERE

·  Ins�t Product  ·  Ins�t Product  ·  Ins�t Product  · 

VENDOR NAME
INSERT TAGLINE HERE

SCALE:  1/4"  =  1 ' -0"

BEACH WA R E CUSTOM T-SH IRTS

GUIDELINES & REQUIREMENTS

Each business with Boardwalk frontage is allowed one A-frame sign. 
No A-frame signs will be allowed unless associated with a Boardwalk 
store/restaurant and in front of the Boardwalk business on the 
business’ property.

A-Frame signs shall not be used for outdoor displays of merchandise, 
including vellums. Nothing may be attached to the A-Frame that 
extends above, on the edges, or extends beyond the frame. A-Frame 
Signs may be two-sided.

A-Frame signs are not allowed on street-ends.

No A-Frame sign may encroach into the boardwalk.

A-Frame signs shall not exceed thirty-six (36") inches by forty-eight 
(48") inches, or twelve (12' sq.) square feet on each side. A-Frame signs 
shall not exceed forty-eight (48") inches in height including the legs.

NTE 48"

This example elevation is to illustrate the requirements for A-Frame Signs. Use this as a reference when determining quantity and placement.

1
2

3

4

Each business with Boardwalk frontage 
is allowed one A-frame sign. No A-Frame
sign may encroach into the boardwalk.

A-Frame signs shall not exceed 
forty-eight (48”) inches in height 

including the legs.

Nothing may be attached to the A-Frame 
that extends above, on the edges, or

extends beyond the frame. 
A-Frame Signs may be two-sided.

A-Frame signs are not allowed
on street-ends.

2

3

4

1
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Agenda Item # 9.B

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Jennie Knapp, Budget and Management Director
RE: First Reading - Ordinance 2025-14, FY26 Proposed Budget
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): First Reading of Ordinance 2025-14 to adopt the Fiscal Year
2026 proposed operating budget. 

SUMMARY: The FY 26 budget totals $181,883,727, with a General Fund
budget of $119,920,345. The proposed tax rate is .4426,
which is higher than the constant yield rate of .3958 and
generates $5,593,058 of new real property revenue. The tax
rate for personal property and corporation tax remains at
$1.11 per $100 of assessed valuation. Anticipated revenue
from real property taxes is $53,940,104, which funds 45% of
the General Fund budget.  Capital projects have been funded
at $3.4 million, which includes $1.8 million for street paving,
$1.5 million for the Capital Maintenance Fund, and $100,000
for Boardwalk re-decking.  Projects approved as "pay-as-you-
go" in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) will be funded
through existing funds in the Capital Maintenance Fund.  They
include:  4th street parking lot expansion, $200,000; street
paving, $350,000; canal dredging, $600,000; City Hall
renovations, $100,000; Northside Park pathway
improvements, $100,000; Northside Park softball lights,
$500,000; storm drain cleaning, $100,000; Worcester Street
comfort station 2nd floor reconfiguration, $200,000, and City
Watch, $50,000.
 
Further information about the FY 26 budget can be found on
the Town's webpage, www.oceancitymd.gov, by selecting the
FY 26 Budget on the main page.

FISCAL IMPACT: Fund balance in the amount of $1,938,179 has been
appropriated to provide a $1,170,179 transfer to the Capital
Maintenance Fund for future capital projects.  Funding for the
Northside Park playground replacement at $268,000 and
funding for the purchase of ten Police take-home vehicles at
$500,000 have also been included.  An additional $329,821
transfer to the Capital Maintenance Fund was funded through
operations, bringing the total transfer to Capital Maintenance
to $1.5 million.
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RECOMMENDATION:

Financially Sound Town Government

Approve Ordinance 2025-14 on First Reading.

 
ALTERNATIVES: Defer to Mayor and Council

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Jennie Knapp, Director of Budget and Management
Terence McGean, City Manager

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. FY 26 Adopted Budget.pdf
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                                                                ORDINANCE 2025-

                                                              TOWN OF OCEAN CITY

                                                                OPERATING BUDGET

                                                                  FISCAL YEAR 2026

1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section I, General Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Property Taxes  $ 56,486,104  $ 56,486,104

Other Taxes 31,398,000 31,398,000

Licenses and Permits 5,435,162 5,435,162

Revenue From Other Agencies 7,570,854 7,570,854

Charges For Services 13,798,402 13,798,402

Fines and Forfeitures 1,458,600 1,458,600

Other Revenue 1,835,044 1,835,044

Prior Year Reserves 1,938,179 1,938,179

     Total Revenue  $ 119,920,345  $ 119,920,345

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

General Government  $ 5,898,139  $ 5,898,139

Public Safety 50,964,987 50,964,987

Public Works/Beach Maintenance 7,944,888 7,944,888

Sanitation and Waste Removal 8,435,953 8,435,953

Highways and Streets 7,009,012 7,009,012

Economic Development -Tourism 15,111,430 15,111,430

Culture and Recreation 9,767,781 9,767,781

Debt Service 5,523,151 5,523,151

     Sub Total  $ 110,655,341  $ 110,655,341

To Airport Fund 320,159 320,159

To Transportation 2,664,205 2,664,205

To Convention Center Fund 2,407,140 2,407,140

To Capital Maintenance Fund 1,500,000 1,500,000

To Vehicle Trust 500,000 500,000

To Capital Projects 1,873,500 1,873,500

     Total Expenditures  $ 119,920,345  $ 119,920,345
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1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section II, Water Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Water Sales  $ 5,772,200  $ 5,772,200

Water Fixture Charge 3,290,000 3,290,000

Service Charges 328,744 328,744

Capacity/Impact Fees 142,128 142,128

Prior Year Reserves 0 0

     Total Revenue  $ 9,533,072  $ 9,533,072

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 2,540,377  $ 2,540,377

Non-Personal Services 3,802,333 3,802,333

Debt Service 1,845,741 1,845,741

Transfer to Reserves 194,621 194,621

Capital Outlay 1,150,000 1,150,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 9,533,072  $ 9,533,072

Section III, Transportation Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Bus Revenue  $ 2,454,141  $ 2,454,141

Federal and State Grants 4,955,249 4,955,249

Transfer-In From General Fund 2,664,205 2,664,205

Prior Year Reserves 0 0

     Total Revenue  $ 10,073,595  $ 10,073,595

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 3,282,396  $ 3,282,396

Non-Personal Services 3,501,199 3,501,199

Capital Outlay 3,290,000 3,290,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 10,073,595  $ 10,073,595
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1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section IV, Wastewater Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Wastewater Treatment Charges  $ 14,621,864  $ 14,621,864

Service Charges 1,270,833 1,270,833

Capacity/Impact Fees 248,160 248,160

Prior Year Reserves 0 0

     Total Revenue  $ 16,140,857  $ 16,140,857

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 4,766,653  $ 4,766,653

Non-Personal Services 5,657,562 5,657,562

Debt Service 2,316,229 2,316,229

Transfer to Reserves 0 0

Capital Outlay 3,400,413 3,400,413

     Total Expenditures  $ 16,140,857  $ 16,140,857

Section V, Airport Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Fuel Sales  $ 809,700  $ 809,700

Rents and Other Revenue 426,228 426,228

Service Charges 228,000 228,000

Federal and State Grants 4,935,000 4,935,000

Prior Year Reserves 100,000 100,000

Transfer-In From General Fund 320,159 320,159

     Total Revenue  $ 6,819,087  $ 6,819,087

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 403,685  $ 403,685

Non-Personal Services 1,115,402 1,115,402

Debt Service 0 0

Capital Outlay 5,300,000 5,300,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 6,819,087  $ 6,819,087
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1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section VI, Municipal Golf Course Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Service Charges  $ 2,494,500  $ 2,494,500

Sales and Concessions 592,349 592,349

Other Revenue 80,000 80,000

Prior Year Reserves 6,234 6,234

     Total Revenue  $ 3,173,083  $ 3,173,083

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 1,376,271  $ 1,376,271

Non-Personal Services 1,490,711 1,490,711

Debt Service 86,476 86,476

Transfer to Reserves 186,125 186,125

Capital Outlay 33,500 33,500

     Total Expenditures  $ 3,173,083  $ 3,173,083

Section VII, Convention Center Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Service Charges  $ 2,508,159  $ 2,508,159

State and County Grants 2,457,139 2,457,139

Food & Beverage Tax 1,860,000 1,860,000

Prior Year Reserves 0 0

Transfer-In From General Fund 2,407,140 2,407,140

     Total Revenue  $ 9,232,438  $ 9,232,438

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 4,303,902  $ 4,303,902

Non-Personal Services 2,788,588 2,788,588

Debt Service 1,668,519 1,668,519

Transfer to Reserves 471,429 471,429

Capital Outlay 0 0

     Total Expenditures  $ 9,232,438  $ 9,232,438
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1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section VIII,  Information Technology Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Service Charges To Other Funds  $ 2,796,338  $ 2,796,338

Prior Year Reserves 5,978 5,978

     Total Revenue  $ 2,802,316  $ 2,802,316

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 1,301,896  $ 1,301,896

Non-Personal Services 1,475,420 1,475,420

Transfer to Reserves 25,000 25,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 2,802,316  $ 2,802,316

Section IX, Service Center Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Service Charges To Other Funds  $ 5,669,900  $ 5,669,900

Prior Year Reserves 85,967 85,967

     Total Revenue  $ 5,755,867  $ 5,755,867

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 2,129,424  $ 2,129,424

Non-Personal Services 3,626,443 3,626,443

Debt Service 0 0

Capital Outlay 0 0

     Total Expenditures  $ 5,755,867  $ 5,755,867
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1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section X, Vehicle & Equipment Trust Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Service Charges To Other Funds  $ 4,088,218  $ 4,088,218

Sales - Materials & Service 378,110 378,110

Sale of Assets 100,000 100,000

Transfer From General Fund 500,000 500,000

Prior Year Reserves 0 0

     Total Revenue  $ 5,066,328  $ 5,066,328

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Non-Personal Services  $ 1,213,237  $ 1,213,237

Debt Service 905,092 905,092

Transfers to Reserves 0 0

Capital Outlay 2,947,999 2,947,999

     Total Expenditures  $ 5,066,328  $ 5,066,328

Section XI, Risk Management Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Service Charges To Other Funds  $ 4,054,522  $ 4,054,522

Interest Earned 117,699 117,699

Prior Year Reserves 0 0

     Total Revenue  $ 4,172,221  $ 4,172,221

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Personal Services  $ 225,007  $ 225,007

Non-Personal Services/Claims 3,887,214 3,887,214

Transfer to Reserves 60,000 60,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 4,172,221  $ 4,172,221
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1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section XII, Pension Trust Funds:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Employer Contributions  $ 9,005,000  $ 9,005,000

Employee Contributions 2,070,000 2,070,000

Investment Earnings 7,050,000 7,050,000

     Total Revenue  $ 18,125,000  $ 18,125,000

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Benefit Payments  $ 10,825,000  $ 10,825,000

Non-Personal Services 915,000 915,000

Reserve for Employee's Retirement 6,385,000 6,385,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 18,125,000  $ 18,125,000

Section XIII, OPEB Trust Funds:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

Employer Contributions  $ 0  $ 0

Employee Contributions 335,000 335,000

Investment Earnings 1,500,000 1,500,000

     Total Revenue  $ 1,835,000  $ 1,835,000

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Benefit Payments  $ 1,550,000  $ 1,550,000

Non-Personal Services 220,000 220,000

Reserve for Retiree Health 65,000 65,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 1,835,000  $ 1,835,000

98



1ST READING 2ND READING

SOURCE FY-2026 FY-2026

Section XIV, General Capital Projects Fund:

A. Anticipated Revenue:

General Fund Contribution 3,373,500 3,373,500

Inlet Lot Parking Revenue 240,000 240,000

     Total Revenue  $ 3,613,500  $ 3,613,500

B. Anticipated Expenditures:

Street Paving 1,773,500 1,773,500

Capital Maintenance 1,500,000 1,500,000

Boardwalk Maintenance 100,000 100,000

Reserve for Future Capital Projects 240,000 240,000

     Total Expenditures  $ 3,613,500  $ 3,613,500

Section XIV, All Funds Expenditure Summary:

General Fund  $ 119,920,345  $ 119,920,345

Water Fund 9,533,072 9,533,072

Transportation Fund 10,073,595 10,073,595

Wastewater Fund 16,140,857 16,140,857

Airport Fund 6,819,087 6,819,087

Municipal Golf Course Fund 3,173,083 3,173,083

Convention Center Fund 9,232,438 9,232,438

Information Technology Fund 2,802,316 2,802,316

Service Center Fund 5,755,867 5,755,867

Vehicle & Equipment Trust Fund 5,066,328 5,066,328

Risk Management Fund 4,172,221 4,172,221

Pension Trust Funds 18,125,000 18,125,000

OPEB Trust Fund 1,835,000 1,835,000

Sub Total  $ 212,649,209  $ 212,649,209

LESS:  Interfund Transfers (34,378,982) (34,378,982)

Total Expenditures  $ 178,270,227  $ 178,270,227

Capital Projects Fund - General 3,613,500 3,613,500

Grand Total  $ 181,883,727  $ 181,883,727
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Section XV, Special Authorization - Budget Manager:

The Director of Budget and Management shall be authorized to reallocate departmental appropriations 

among the various objects of expenditures as she deems necessary.  Such changes shall be approved 

by the Finance Administrator & City Manager.

Section XVI, Restrictions - City Manager:

A. The utilization of any contingency appropriation shall be accomplished only with prior

authorization from the Mayor and Council.

B. Utilization of appropriations established in the Capital Improvement Fund may be

accomplished only with the express approval of the Mayor and Council.

Section XVII, Tax Rate:

An Ad Valorem Tax Rate of $0.4426 per $100 of assessed valuation  of real property and a rate of $1.11

per $100 of assessed valuation of corporate and personal property tax is required to fund this budget.

INTRODUCED at a meeting of the City Council of Ocean City, Maryland held on May 5, 2025.

ADOPTED AND PASSED, as amended, by the required vote of the elected membership of the City Council

and approved by the Mayor at its meeting held on May 19, 2025.

RICHARD W. MEEHAN, MAYOR MATTHEW M. JAMES, PRESIDENT

DIANA CHAVIS, CITY CLERK ANTHONY J. DELUCA, SECRETARY

ADOPTED:

                         Date

MOTION TO ADOPT BY:

MOTION SECONDED BY:

VOTE:                           FOR:                            AGAINST:                  
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Agenda Item # 9.C

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Heather Stansbury, City Solicitor
RE: Ordinance 2025-15, Sleeping, obstructing and storing personal property in

public places
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): First Reading of Ordinance 2025-15 amends Chapter 58,
entitled Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, by adding
Article VII, entitled Sleeping, Obstructing and Storing Personal
Property in Public Places.

SUMMARY: At the April 29 Work Session, the Mayor and City Council were
provided with as summary of public health and safety concerns
over sleeping, obstructing and storing personal property in
public places and proposed ordinance provisions. Council
approved the proposed ordinance for first reading May 5.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

1st Class Resort and Tourist Destination

Approve Ordinance 2025-15 on first reading.

 
ALTERNATIVES: Defer to Mayor and Council

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: City Solicitor Heather Stansbury

COORDINATED WITH: Ocean City Police Department

ATTACHMENT(S): 1 . ORD 2025 - Amend Chapter 58, Article VII, Sleeping,
Obstructing & Storing Pers. Prop. in Public Places.pdf
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Agenda Item # 9.D

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Heather Stansbury, City Solicitor
RE: First Reading - Ordinance 2025-16 to Amend Section 1.8
DATE: May 1, 2025

ISSUE(S): First Reading of Ordinance 2025-16 to amend Section 1.8,
Violations and Penalties, adding Article VII, entitled “Sleeping,
Obstructing and Storing Personal Property in Public Places” to
Chapter 58, entitled “Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions.”

SUMMARY: At the April 29 Work Session, the Mayor and City Council were
provided with as summary of public health and safety concerns
over sleeping, obstructing and storing personal property in
public places and proposed ordinance provision.
 
This Ordinance is a companion bill to Ordinance 2025-15
adding Article VII of Chapter 58 to ensure offenses are
correctly assigned a penalty. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

1st Class Resort and Tourist Destination

Approve Ordinance 2025-16 on first reading. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: If Ordinance 2025-16 passes on first reading, then none.

 
If Ordinance 2025-16 does not pass on first reading, then this
Ordinance may need to be withdrawn.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: City Solicitor Heather Stansbury

COORDINATED WITH: Ocean City Police Department

ATTACHMENT(S): 1 . ORD 2025 - Amend Chapter 1-8, Violations and
Penalties.pdf

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



10
8



10
9



Agenda Item # 9.E

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Resolution 2025-14 - Disposal of Surplus Personal Property
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): Resolution 2025-14 authorizes the sale of surplus personal
property.

SUMMARY: Resolution 2025-14 authorizes the sale of miscellaneous items
and vehicles as coordinated with various Town departments.

FISCAL IMPACT: To be determined.

RECOMMENDATION:

Financially Sound Town Government

Adopt Resolution 2025-14.

 
ALTERNATIVES: None suggested.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Scott Wagner, Public Works Deputy Director

Dawn Webb, Purchasing Associate

COORDINATED WITH: Various departments

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. May Asset Disposal List.pdf
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Asset Disposal Date: May 2025
Reference # Equipment # Year Make Description Model Serial/VIN Number Disposal Reason/Notes Department Notes Employee

G-19 2874 2010 Honda Generator EU2000 EAAJ1970907 End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

523 2360 2005 Freightliner Truck/Tractor M2112 1FUJC5CVX5HU51065 End of Life PW-Maintenance T.Dy

601 2699 2008 Ford Expedition U165 1FMFU16528LA63503 End of Life Beach Patrol B.Arbin

996 3699 2020 Echo Handheld Blower PB255LN N/A End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

1035 2827 2008 Echo Pole Chain Saw PPT260 E0851200579 End of Life Parks Mantenance Does Not Work G.Collier

1114 3700 2020 Echo Line Trimmer SRM2320T U29515015719 End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

1129 3701 2020 Echo Line Trimmer SRM2320T U29515015727 End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

1150 3702 2020 Echo Line Trimmer SRM2320T U29515015697 End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

1169 3703 2020 Echo Handheld Blower PB255LN P42914066625 End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

1178 3704 2020 Echo Handheld Blower PB255LN P42914066636 End of Life Parks Mantenance G.Collier

Manufacturer Model# Quantity

Price When 

Purchased/Other Disposal Reason Department Condition Employee

Miscellaneous:

Description
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Agenda Item # 10.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Public Comments
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): Comments from the Public

SUMMARY: Any person who may wish to speak on any matter at the
Regular Meeting may be heard during Comments from the
Public for a period of five (5) minutes or such time as may be
deemed appropriate by the Council President. Anyone wishing
to be heard shall state their name, address and the subject on
which he or she wishes to speak.

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High Performing Town
Organization

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Not Applicable

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): None
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Agenda Item # 11.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Comments from the City Manager
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): City Manager Comments

SUMMARY: A. Review of the May 13, 2025, draft Work Session agenda.

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High Performing Town
Organization

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): None
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Agenda Item # 12.A

Council Meeting May 5, 2025

TO: The Honorable Mayor, Council President and Members of Council
THRU: Terence J. McGean, PE, City Manager
FROM: Diana Chavis, City Clerk, MMC
RE: Comments from the Mayor and City Council
DATE: April 28, 2025

ISSUE(S): Mayor and Council Comments

SUMMARY: Not Applicable

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION:

Excellent Service through a High Performing Town
Organization

Not Applicable

 
ALTERNATIVES: Not Applicable

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Not Applicable

COORDINATED WITH: Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT(S): None
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